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                           STATE OF FLORIDA
                 DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

MIRIAM L. PULLY,                   )
                                   )
         Petitioner,               )
                                   )
vs.                                )     CASE NO.  92-3770
                                   )
ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD,        )
                                   )
          Respondent.              )
___________________________________)

                             RECOMMENDED ORDER

     Pursuant to notice, the Division of Administrative Hearings, by its duly
designated Hearing Officer, Mary Clark, held a formal hearing in the above-
styled case on March 31, 1993, in Orlando, Florida.

                              APPEARANCES

     For Petitioner:  Miriam L. Pully
                      (Representing herself)
                      57 Lake Drive
                      DeBary, Florida 32713-2873

     For Respondent:  Frank C. Kruppenbacher, Esquire
                      390 North Orange Avenue, Suite 1300
                      Orlando, Florida 32801

                        STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

     Petitioner alleges that Respondent discriminated against her on account of
her national origin (Finnish) by refusing to renew an annual contract as a
teacher, thereby terminating her employment.  The issue is whether this alleged
violation of Section 760.10, F.S. occurred, and if so what relief is
appropriate.

                        PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

     On July 10, 1991, Petitioner Miriam Pully filed her complaint of
discrimination alleging that the Orange County School Board fired her from her
teaching position because of her national origin.  After a determination of "no
cause" by the Florida Commission on Human Relations (FCHR), Mrs. Pully timely
filed a Petition for Relief.

     The case was referred to the Division of Administrative Hearings to conduct
a formal evidentiary hearing, and Respondent filed its answer to the petition.
Two continuances were granted for good cause before the hearing proceeded.

     At the hearing, Mrs. Pully testified in her own behalf, and presented the
testimony of Norma Faye Masterson and Mrs. Pully's husband, Wayne James Pully.
She offered exhibits #1-7; exhibits #2-5 were received in evidence; exhibits



#1,6 and 7 were marked for identification, but were rejected for lack of
authentication, lack of relevancy or hearsay.

     Respondent cross-examined Mrs. Pully and Ms. Masterson and submitted two
exhibits, received as Respondent's #1 and #2.  The parties stipulated to
admission of the deposition of Miriam Pully taken on behalf of Respondent on
October 5, 1992.  This exhibit and its attachments were marked and received as
Joint Exhibit #1.  The parties were given the opportunity to submit an
additional late-filed exhibit, Mrs. Pully's personnel record, but this was never
filed.

     Mrs. Pully submitted a brief summary of her argument on April 22, 1993.

                          FINDINGS OF FACT

     1.  Petitioner, Miriam Lehtimaki Pully (Mrs. Pully) was born in Finland in
1941, and emigrated to the United States in 1958.  She became a U.S. Citizen in
December 1964.

     2.  She obtained a Bachelors degree in psychology and sociology at the
University of Connecticut; and later, in 1987, received a special education
teaching certificate in Delaware after taking some extra courses.

     3.  In October 1989, Mrs. Pully was hired by the Orange County School Board
to teach an educable mentally handicapped (EMH) special education class at
Rolling Hills Elementary School.  She was interviewed and recommended for hiring
by Norma Masterson, the Rolling Hills principal.

     4.  Her employment application is not part of the record, but at the
hearing Mrs. Pully agreed that the application reflected her U.S. citizenship
and referred to her Finnish origin.  She speaks with a slight Northern European
accent that she claims most people mistake for German.

     5.  If Mrs. Pully's origin was mentioned at all in the interview, it was in
passing, and it was never discussed again by Ms. Masterson.  At the time of the
interview Mrs. Pully had the impression that Ms. Masterson was very positive
about her and that she would enjoy a long-term employment relationship.

     6.  Mrs. Pully also understood, however, that she was being hired "out of
field" and that she was hired with special permission on a one-year temporary
contract.  She lacked credit hours in order to be certified in special education
or EMH in Florida.

     7.  During the 1990-91 school year, Miriam Pully was the only EMH teacher
at Rolling Hills.  She had from three to five students in various levels from
kindergarten through fifth grade.  She also had a teacher's aide.

     8.  During that school year, Norma Masterson talked with Mrs. Pully about
her children being left unattended, or insufficiently supervised.  Mrs. Pully
let them play outside sometimes two hours a day, which was considered by Ms.
Masterson to be excessive.

     Ms. Masterson was also concerned about Ms. Pully's careless record keeping
and failure to record accurate attendance.  On several occasions on visiting her
classroom, Ms. Masterson found the children out of control or ignoring their
teacher.



     9.  In spite of the problems perceived by Ms. Masterson, she did not give
Mrs. Pully the "black mark" of "needs improvement" on her evaluation because she
did not want Mrs. Pully to be hindered in obtaining a teaching position in her
appropriate field.

     10.  Norma Masterson did not recommend that Mrs. Pully be rehired for
another year.  Her temporary contract expired in June, 1990.  It was Ms.
Masterson's understanding that even if there had been no performance problems,
she could not rehire Mrs. Pully, as she needed at least six more college credit
hours to teach in the EMH field.

     11.  Over the summer months the teachers' union negotiated on Ms. Pully's
behalf, and the school board agreed to rehire her for the 1990-91 school year,
if she took additional college courses.

     She obtained 3 credit hours and was given another temporary contract
commencing in August 1990.

     12.  Norma Masterson observed the same problems immediately in the second
year.  Another EMH teacher was hired to take the older, higher level students,
and Mrs. Pully had the younger students, kindergarten through third grade.  At
times Mrs. Pully had as many as seven or eight students, but ordinarily she had
five or six.  She had to share the teacher's aide with Ms. Kelly, the other EMH
teacher; and in October the school lost the aide due to funding.  After the aide
left, other teaching assistants were able to assist the EMH teachers.

     13.  Ms. Masterson personally conducted observations in Mrs. Pully's
classroom on several occasions during the 1990-91 school year.  This was part of
her job and she conducted similar observations of other teachers.  Her opinion
was that Mrs. Pully was simply not capable of teaching the mentally handicapped
children.

     She found lack of discipline and inadequate planning for instructional
time.  She found that children were being taught as a group and individual
levels were not being addressed.  She still found too much play time and too
little time "on task".  And she still found inadequate record keeping with
regard to report cards and attendance records.  On several occasions Ms.
Masterson counselled Mrs. Pully about her unkempt appearance or inappropriate
dress.

     14.  In March 1991, Ms. Masterson completed her annual assessment report of
Miriam Pully and gave her an "unsatisfactory" overall evaluation, with "needs
improvement" in six out of eleven categories.  She informed Ms. Pully that she
would not recommend that she be rehired.

     The school board accepted the recommendation, and Mrs. Pully did not
receive another contract after June 1991.

     15.  Mrs. Pully asserts that Ms. Masterson did not approve of her teaching
style, but that her style was appropriate and effective.  She believes that Ms.
Masterson "picked on her" and that other teachers spied on her and took tales to
the principal.

     Mrs. Pully contends that Ms. Masterson tried to get rid of her the first
year because she really wanted to hire Ms. Kelly for the job.  She also contends
that in the second year Ms. Masterson picked on her out of pique that the union
successfully got her rehired.  Finally, Mrs. Pully contends that the harassment



about her appearance, record keeping and the like, was all because she was
Finnish and was not one of the "good old girls".

     16.  The appropriate scope and the evidence in this proceeding do not
permit a finding as to which teaching style was "right", nor do they permit a
finding as to whether Miriam Pully was properly not rehired by the school board.
The relevant issue is whether the alleged discrimination occurred.

     From the evidence presented, I do not find that Ms. Masterson (or the
school board in adopting her recommendation) discriminated against this teacher
on account of her national origin.

     17.  In making her observations and evaluations, Norma Masterson relied on
her substantial experience in teaching, school administration, and special
education. She also considered the appropriate observations and recommendations
of peer teachers and specialists.

     Ms. Masterson routinely visited classrooms, not just Mrs. Pully's class, to
get to know the students and to see where improvements could be made.  She also
counselled other staff about their appearance, and one staff person was sent
home to change when she came to school in a long shirt and leggings.

     When necessary, Ms. Masterson also addressed other teachers' problems with
discipline or record keeping.  Her concern about Mrs. Pully's discipline related
to the perceived lack of control.  Even though special education classes may or
may not be disorganized, as acknowledged by Ms. Masterson, the children need to
work toward the goals of their individual education plans.  Working "out of
field", Mrs. Pully did not have the skills necessary to effectively meet the
children's needs, contrary to Ms. Masterson's sincere positive expectations at
the time of hiring.

                         CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

     18.  The Division of Administrative Hearings has jurisdiction in this
proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57(1), Florida Statutes.

     19.  Respondent is an "employer" as defined in Subsection 760.02(6),
Florida Statutes (1991).

     20.  Subsection 760.10(1)(a), Florida Statutes (1991), provides that it is
an unlawful employment practice for an employer to discharge or otherwise
discriminate against an individual because of such individual's race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status.

     21.  Since Florida's employment discrimination statute is patterned on
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000e-2, resort to federal
court interpretations of that act is appropriate.  School Board of Leon County
v. Hargis, 400 So.2d 103 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981).

     22.  In McDonald Douglas Corp. v. Green, 411 U.S. 792 (1973) and Texas
Department of Community Affairs v. Burdine, 450 U.S. 258 (1981), the U.S.
Supreme Court established the basic allocation of burden of proof in
discrimination cases.

     23.  Petitioner retains the burden of proof throughout the proceeding,
although once a prima facie case of discrimination is established, the
Respondent must articulate some legitimate, nondiscriminatory reason for the



challenged action.  Then the Petitioner must prove that the reasons offered are
not true, but rather a pretext for discrimination.

     24.  The prima facie case "... raises an inference of discrimination only
because we presume these acts, if otherwise unexplained, are more likely than
not based on the consideration of impermissible factors...."  Furnco
Construction Co. v. Waters, 438 U.S. 567 (1978), cited in Burdine, supra.

     25.  As found above, Mrs. Pully failed to prove discrimination by her
former principal or the Respondent school board.

     26.  While she proved that she is a member of a protected class, she was
nonetheless initially hired by Respondent.  The weight of evidence in this
proceeding establishes that the motivation for non-renewal of her contract was
that she was not qualified to teach "out of field" in the elementary school
special education program.  There was no evidence that others who were not
members of her protected class were allowed to continue with temporary contracts
in areas in which they were not certified.

                           RECOMMENDATION

     Based on the foregoing, it is, hereby,

     RECOMMENDED:

     That Miriam L. Pully's petition for relief be dismissed.

     DONE AND RECOMMENDED this 24th day of May, 1993, in Tallahassee, Leon
County, Florida.

                              ___________________________________
                              MARY W. CLARK
                              Hearing Officer
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              The DeSoto Building
                              1230 Apalachee Parkway
                              Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1550
                              (904) 488-9675

                              Filed with the Clerk of the
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              this 24th day of May, 1993.

COPIES FURNISHED:

Miriam L. Pully
57 Lake Drive
DeBary, Florida  32713-2873

Frank C. Kruppenbacher, Esquire
390 North Orange Avenue, Suite 1300
Orlando, Florida  32801



Sharon Moultry, Clerk
Human Relations Commission
Building F, Suite 240
325 John Knox Road
Tallahassee, Florida  32303-4149

Dana Baird, General Counsel
Human Relations Commission
Building F, Suite 240
325 John Knox Road
Tallahassee, Florida  32303-4149

                NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUBMIT EXCEPTIONS

All parties have the right to submit written exceptions to this Recommended
Order.  All agencies allow each party at least 10 days in which to submit
written exceptions.  Some agencies allow a larger period within which to submit
written exceptions.  You should contact the agency that will issue the final
order in this case concerning agency rules on the deadline for filing exceptions
to this Recommended Order.  Any exceptions to this Recommended Order should be
filed with the agency that will issue the final order in this case.
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                           STATE OF FLORIDA
                 DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

KAREN EHLERS,                 )
                              )
            Petitioner,       )
                              )
vs.                           )     CASE NO.  92-3782
                              )
FLORIDA EMPLOYERS INSURANCE   )
SERVICE CORPORATION,          )
                              )
           Respondent.        )
______________________________)

                          RECOMMENDED ORDER

     Upon due notice, the Division of Administrative Hearings by its duly
assigned Hearing Officer, William R. Cave, held a formal hearing in the above-
captioned matter on January 25, 1993 in Sarasota, Florida with a continuation of
that hearing held on February 2, 1993, in Sarasota, Florida.

                            APPEARANCES

     For Petitioner:  Snowden S. Mowry, Esquire
                      KANETSKY, MOOR & DEBOER, P. A.
                      Post Office Box 1767
                      Venice, Florida  34284-1767

     For Respondent:  David J. Stefany, Esquire
                      HOGG, ALLEN, NORTON & BLUE, P. A.
                      324 South Hyde Park Avenue, Suite 350
                      Tampa, Florida  33606

                       STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

     Whether Petitioner, Karen L. Ehlers was wrongfully terminated from her
position with Respondent, Florida Employers Insurance Service Corporation
because of her handicap or perceived handicap in violation of Section
760.10(1)(a), Florida Statutes.

                        PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

     On January 2, 1991, Petitioner filed a Charge of Discrimination against the
Respondent, Florida Employers Insurance Service Corporation (FEISCO) alleging it
had discriminated against her because of her handicap or perceived handicap,
chronic fatigue syndrome.  On April 27, 1992, the Florida Commission on Human
Relations (Commission) entered its Determination: No Cause, as to Petitioner's
previously filed Charge of Discrimination against Respondent.  Thereafter, on
May 26, 1992, through her counsel, Petitioner filed a Petition For Relief with
the Commission based on the same alleged discrimination, and on June 23, 1992,
the matter was transmitted to the Division of Administrative Hearings for the
assignment of a Hearing Officer and the conduct of a hearing.



     At the hearing, the Petitioner testified in her own behalf and presented
the testimony of Michael O'Day, Ann Pope-Shaw, Amy Bergman and Joan Zare.
Petitioner's exhibits 1 through 14 were received as evidence in this case.
Respondent presented the testimony of Jim Venza, Joan Zare, Risha Gravelin,
Terry Nelson, Robert Burgoon and John Keegan.  Respondent's exhibits 1 through 4
were received as evidence in this case.

     A transcript of the proceeding was filed with the Division of
Administrative Hearings of March 3, 1993.  The parties timely filed their
Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with the Division of
Administrative Hearings.  A ruling on each proposed finding of fact submitted by
the parties has been made as reflected in an Appendix to the Recommended Order.

                          FINDINGS OF FACT

     Upon consideration of the oral and documentary evidence adduced at the
hearing, the following relevant findings of fact are made:

     1.  FEISCO is a Florida corporation which is in the business of providing
insurance-related services to insurance companies, self-insurer funds and self-
insured employers, and is an employer as that term is defined in Section
760.02(6), Florida Statutes.

     2.  FEISCO has a department called Information Services (formerly known as
Management Information Services) which is responsible for providing the computer
information systems within FEISCO and maintaining the many applications and data
bases used by other FEISCO departments.

     3.  The Petitioner, Karen L. Ehlers, was employed by FEISCO from July 17,
1989, to November 15, 1990, as a computer programmer in the Information Services
department.

     4.  The minimum education requirement for the position of computer
programmer was two years' computer science education or equivalent Micro/Mini
exposure.  Petitioner holds a bachelor's  degree in mathematics with an emphasis
in computer science.

     5.  As a computer programmer, Petitioner's job duties included writing
computer programs, designed by analysts, using several computer languages and
working and communicating with analysts and program users to correct design
problems to assure the final program fit the user's needs.

     6.  At all times during her employment with FEISCO, Petitioner was
supervised by Joan Zare, Production Supervisor, Information Services department.
Zare was responsible for overseeing Petitioner's training during her
probationary period and for all formal evaluations of Petitioner's work.

     7.  John Keegan, Manager of FEISCO's Information Services department, was
Zare's immediate supervisor at all times relevant to this proceeding.  Keegan
reviewed and approved the written evaluations of Petitioner by Zare, but did not
review Petitioner's work.  Keegan did not have any direct knowledge of
Petitioner's competence, and did not interview either Zare or Petitioner
regarding the evaluations.

     8.  Jim Venza, Director of Information Services for FEISCO, was Keegan's
immediate supervisor at all times relevant to this proceeding.  Venza had no
direct knowledge of Petitioner's work performance.



     9.  Upon being hired by FEISCO, Petitioner was subject to a ninety-day
probationary period.  After this probationary period (July 7, 1989 to October
13, 1989), Zare gave Petitioner a positive evaluation which included ratings of
"Achieves" in all performance standards.  Zare viewed Petitioner's overall
performance during her probationary period as satisfactory and recommended
Petitioner for full employee status.

     10.  In January, 1990, Petitioner received a salary adjustment upward from
$20,000.00 to $20,500.00

     11.  In June, 1990, Petitioner received a congratulatory memorandum and a
$50.00 bonus for successfully completing a Property and Liability Insurance
course and examination.

     12.  FEISCO encouraged its employees to take course work to increase their
knowledge of insurance and to join Toastmasters, a group organized to help its
members improve self-confidence and public speaking skills.

     13.  Petitioner participated in outsider course work and Toastmasters.

     14.  On July 4, 1990, Petitioner was diagnosed as having chronic fatigue
syndrome.  This condition did not restrict Petitioner in her job as a computer
programmer or effect her work negatively.

     15.  On July 9, 1990, Petitioner advised Zare that she had chronic fatigue
syndrome.

     16.  On July 17, 1990, Zare gave Petitioner her first annual performance
evaluation.  Although Petitioner had experienced some problems with her work
during the period after her probationary performance evaluation, Zare felt that
her job performance in the latter part of the evaluation period indicated that
Petitioner had overcome those problems.  Zare rated the Petitioner as achieving
at or above the standards expected of her in all areas of her job performance.
In one area of work Petitioner was rated as "Exceeds".

     17.  While Zare considered Petitioner as performing satisfactory at the
time of her first annual performance evaluation,  it was understood between
Petitioner and Zare that continued improvement by the Petitioner would be
necessary in order for Petitioner to maintain a satisfactory performance rating.

     18.  On October 15, 1990, Keegan and Bob Burgoon, a program analyst,
assigned Petitioner to the extra duty of Problem Manager.

     19.  The duties of Problem Manager involved reviewing and solving problems
with programs which were called in by users, and required being on-call to
assist operations during off-hours.

     20.  The job of Problem Manager had previously been rotated among analysts
and not assigned to programmers.  However, the job of Problem Manager was
assigned to Petitioner because Keegan and Burgoon felt that she could handle the
job.

     21.  On October 16, 1990, Petitioner advised Keegan of her previously
diagnosed medical condition, and presented Keegan with a written statement from
her doctor recommending that Petitioner restrict herself to a forty-hour week.
Petitioner advised Keegan that she still wanted to try the Problem Manager's



job.  However, Keegan decided not to "second guess" the doctor and removed
Petitioner from the Problem Manager duties.

     22.  There is insufficient evidence to establish facts to show that Keegan
at any time,  including the meeting with Petitioner on October 15, 1990, advised
the Petitioner that her medical condition would adversely affect her job with
FEISCO.

     23.  Petitioner became concerned about her job after the meeting with
Keegan on October 15, 1990 and discussed this matter with Frances White in
personnel on October 22, 1990.

     24.  Petitioner also shared these same concerns about her job with Zare on
October 23, 1990.  At this meeting with Zare there was no reference to
Petitioner's job performance by Zare.  On this same day, Zare met with Venza and
Keegan together and with White individually in regard to Petitioner's concerns.

     25.  On October 24, 1990, Petitioner met with Zare and White.  At this
meeting, Zare and Petitioner discussed concerns about Petitioner's job
performance.  They also discussed Zare's intention to develop a detailed list of
skills necessary for the satisfactory performance of the programmer position
which would be used to revise the current programmer position description, and
would involve a self-assessment by all programmers.  The purpose of the self-
assessment was to identify the areas in which the programmers felt they needed
improvement.

     26.  After each programmer finished their respective self-assessment, Zare
reviewed the self-assessment individually with each programmer.

     27.  In reviewing Petitioner's self-assessment, Zare concluded that
Petitioner had overrated her abilities in several areas.

     28.  After Zare concluded the review of the individual self-assessments
with each programmer, Zare prepared a memorandum of her findings to all
programmers.  The memorandum outlined a proposed training project that was to be
given in conjunction with the individual self-assessment.

     29.  As with other programmers, Petitioner was assigned a series of
projects to be completed as part of this training.

     30.  As each part of the project was completed, Zare orally evaluated the
Petitioner's performance and tested the program and reviewed the coding used by
Petitioner. Errors were pointed out to Petitioner and she was given an
opportunity to correct the errors.

     31.  On November 14, 1990, after completion of the entire project, Zare
reviewed Petitioner's work and prepared a written appraisal of Petitioner's
performance on the project.

     32.  The written appraisal described Petitioner's shortcomings but also
included some positive criticism.  Zare concluded that Petitioner's work on the
project was below the expected standard. Basically, the written appraisal was
contradictory to all performance evaluations previously given to Petitioner by
Zare.

     33.  The programmers, other than Petitioner and Chris Brady, were unable to
begin work on the project due to prior work commitments before Zare was



transferred to another department.  After Zare was transferred this project was
terminated.  While Zare did verbally counsel Brady about his work, Brady did not
receive a written appraisal by Zare before her transfer.  Therefore, Petitioner
was the only programmer to receive a written appraisal of her work on the
project.

     34.  On November 14, 1990 when Petitioner met with Zare to review Zare's
written appraisal of her performance, the Petitioner became upset and defensive.
Therefore, Zare suggested that the Petitioner review the appraisal overnight and
come back the next day to discuss the appraisal.  Petitioner did not return to
discuss the appraisal with Zare.

     35.  Petitioner's failure to return and discuss the appraisal with Zare
resulted in Zare concluding that Petitioner was unwilling to accept constructive
criticism of her performance.  This precluded Zare from working with Petitioner
to attain any progress.  Therefore, Zare concluded that nothing could be
accomplished in attempting to work with Petitioner in the future. Therefore,
Zare recommended to Keegan and Venza that Petitioner be terminated.

     36.  Although Zare considered Petitioner's work performance to be below
standards, Zare would not have recommended Petitioner's termination had it not
been for Petitioner's very negative reaction and her unwillingness to discuss
the appraisal with Zare.

     37.  Petitioner's employment with FEISCO was involuntarily terminated on
November 15, 1990.

     38.  Between being terminated with FEISCO and being re-employed, Petitioner
lost ten weeks of pay at $418.00 per week, an annual bonus equal to one month's
pay and other monetary damages in the form of lost medical benefits.

     39.  Although FEISCO had several employees that suffered a medical
condition during times relevant to this proceeding, there was no evidence that
FEISCO discriminated against any of these employees because of their medical
condition.

     40.  There was insufficient evidence to establish facts to show that FEISCO
discriminated against Petitioner because of her medical condition, chronic
fatigue syndrome, when FEISCO terminated Petitioner on November 15, 1990.

                         CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

     41.  The Division of Administrative Hearings has jurisdiction over the
parties to, and the subject matter of, this proceeding pursuant to Section
120.57(1), Florida Statutes.

     42.  Petitioner contends that she was unlawfully discharged by Respondent
because of her handicap or perceived handicap.

     43.  Section 760.10, Florida Statutes, provides that it is an unlawful
employment practice for an employer to discharge or otherwise discriminate
against an individual because of such individual's race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, age, handicap, or marital status.

     44.  Since Florida's employment discrimination statute is patterned on
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 421



U.S.C., 2000e-2, resort to federal court interpretations of that act is
appropriate.  School Board of Leon County v. Hargis, 400 So. 2d 103, (1 DCA Fla.
1981).

     45.  In McDonald Douglas Corp. v. Green, 411 U.S. 792 (1973) and Texas
Department of Community Affairs v. Burdine, 450 U.S. 258 (1981), the U.S.
Supreme Court established the basic allocation of burden of proof in
discrimination cases.  Petitioner retains the burden of proof throughout the
proceeding, although once a prima facie case of discrimination is established,
the Respondent must articulate some legitimate, nondiscriminatory reason for the
challenged action.  Then Petitioner must prove by a preponderance of the
evidence that the reasons offered are not true, but rather a pretext for
discrimination.

     46.  To present a prima facie case, the Petitioner must present facts which
"...'raise an inference of discrimination only because we presume these acts, if
otherwise unexplained, are more likely than not based on the consideration of
impermissible factors'...", Furnco Construction Co. v. Waters, 438 U.S. 567
(1978), cited in Burdine, 450 U.S. 248.  The prima facie case serves to
eliminate the most common nondiscriminatory reasons for Petitioner's disparate
treatment.  See, Teamsters v. United States, 431 U.S. 324, 358 and n. 44 (1977).

     47.  In order to establish a prima facie case, Petitioner must show: (1)
she is a member of a protected class; (2) she is qualified and; (3) she was
discharged from the job by reason of her handicap.  Cf. McDonnell Douglas, 411
U.S. 792.

     48.  Although Petitioner has shown that she has a handicap and, thus, is a
member of the protected class of handicap individual and that she was qualified
for the position for which she was hired, she has failed to prove that she was
discharged from her position by reason of her handicap.  Therefore, Petitioner
has failed to present a prima facie case.

     49.  However, assuming arguendo that Petitioner has established facts
sufficient to raise the presumption of a prima facie case, the Respondent has
articulated legitimate, nondiscriminatory reasons for its decision to discharge
Petitioner.  This dispute centers not on Petitioner's capabilities, but on her
job performance and her inability to accept criticism of her job performance.
Considering the evidence in the light most favorable to Petitioner, it shows
that the Petitioner was capable of satisfactory performance on the job but at
one point failed to perform her assigned duties satisfactorily and, when
confronted with her unsatisfactory performance became defensive resulting in her
discharge.

     50.  Petitioner argues that Respondent's stated reasons for her discharge
are merely a pretext for unlawful discrimination.  However, there is
insufficient evidence in the record to establish facts to show that Respondent's
decision to discharge Petitioner was motivated by her handicap or perceived
handicap.  Therefore, Petitioner has failed to meet her burden to show that the
reasons offered by Respondent for her discharge were pretextual and that the
intent behind Petitioner's discharge was actually discriminatory.



                           RECOMMENDATION

     Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is
recommended that the Commission enter a Final Order finding that the Petitioner,
Karen Ehlers, was not discharged due to her handicap or perceived handicap in
violation of Section 760.10, Florida Statutes, and that the Petition For Relief
be dismissed.

     RECOMMENDED this 26th day of May, 1993, at Tallahassee, Florida.

                              ___________________________________
                              WILLIAM R. CAVE
                              Hearing Officer
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              The DeSoto Building
                              1230 Apalachee Parkway
                              Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1550
                              (904) 488-9675

                              Filed with the Clerk of the
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              this 26th day of May, 1993.

            APPENDIX TO RECOMMENDED ORDER, CASE NO. 92-3782

     The following constitutes my specific rulings, pursuant to Section
120.59(2), Florida Statutes, on all of the proposed findings of fact submitted
by the parties in this case.

Petitioner's Proposed Findings of Fact.

1.  Proposed Findings of Fact 1 through 31 have been adopted in substance as
modified in the Recommended Order, except where they may be subordinate,
cumulative, unnecessary, irrelevant, immaterial or a restatement of testimony,
with the exception of the second sentence of Proposed Finding of Fact 30 which
is rejected as not being supported by competent substantial evidence in the
record.

Respondent's Proposed Findings of Fact.

1.  Proposed Findings of Fact 1 through 18 and 22 through 55 have been adopted
in substance as modified in the Recommended Order, except where they may be
subordinate, cumulative, unnecessary, irrelevant, immaterial.

2.  Proposed Findings of Fact 19 through 21 are rejected as not being supported
by competent substantial evidence in the record.
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                NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUBMIT EXCEPTIONS

All parties have the right to submit written exceptions to the Recommended
Order.  All agencies allow each party at least 10 days in which to submit
written exceptions.  Some agencies allow a larger period within which to submit
written exceptions.  You should consult with the agency that will issue the
final order in this case concerning their rules on the deadline for filing
exceptions to this Recommended Order.  Any exceptions to this Recommended Order
should be filed with the agency that will issue the final order in this case.
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                         STATE OF FLORIDA
                  COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS

KAREN EHLERS,                    )
                                 )
     Petitioner,                 )          EEOC Case No. n/a
                                 )          FCHR Case No. 91-1118
vs.                              )
                                 )
FLORIDA EMPLOYERS INSURANCE      )          DOAH Case No. 92-3782
SERVICE CORPORATION,             )          FCHR Order No. 93-028
                                 )
     Respondent.                 )
_________________________________)



               FINAL ORDER DISMISSING PETITION FOR
                     RELIEF FROM AN UNLAWFUL
                       EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE

          I. Panel of Commissioners

     The following three Commissioners participated in the disposition of this
matter:

                  Commissioner Geraldine Thompson,
                    Panel Chairperson;
                  Commissioner Judith Kavanaugh; and
                  Commissioner James Mallue.

          II.  Appearances

     For Petitioner   Snowden S. Mowery, Esquire
      Karen Ehlers:   Kanetsky, Moor & DeBoer, P.A.
                      Post Office Box 1767
                      Venice, Florida  34284-1767

     For Respondent   David J. Stefany, Esquire
  Florida Employers   Hogg, Allen, Norton & Blue, P.A.
  Insurance Service   324 South Hyde Park Avenue, Suite 350
       Corporation:   Tampa, Florida  33606

          III.  Preliminary Matters

     Karen Ehlers, Petitioner herein, filed a complaint of discrimination with
the Commission on Human Relations pursuant to the Human Rights Act 1977, as
amended, Sections 760.01-760.10, Florida Statutes (1991), alleging that Florida
Employers Insurance Corporation (FEISCO), Respondent herein, unlawfully
discriminated against her on the basis of handicap.

     In accordance with the Commission's rules, the allegations of
discrimination were investigated and an Investigatory Report was submitted to
the Executive Director who issued his determination finding no reasonable cause
to believe that an unlawful employment practice occurred.

     Petitioner filed a Petition for Relief from an Unlawful Employment Practice
and the case was transferred to the Division of Administrative Hearings (DOAH)
for the conduct of a formal proceeding.

     A formal administrative hearing was held before DOAH hearing officer
William R. Cave, who issued a Recommended Order of dismissal.  Petitioner Ehlers
filed exceptions to the Recommended Order and Respondent FEISCO filed its
response to the exceptions.

     Pursuant to notice, public deliberations were held in Orlando, Florida,
before the aforementioned panel of Commissioners, at which deliberations the
panel determined the action to be taken upon the Petition for Relief.

          IV.  Rulings on Petitioner's Exceptions

     (a).  Exceptions to paragraphs numbered 17, 22, 30, 31 and 49 of the
Recommended Order:



     These exceptions are denied.  They are exceptions to the different aspects
of the evidence credited by the hearing officer.  The exceptions are denied
because the hearing officer has discretion in evaluating the evidence presented
to him.  FEISCO's response to these exceptions are correct.  See Davis v. Humana
of Florida, Inc., 15 F.A.L.R. 231 (FCHR 1992).

     (b).  Exceptions to paragraphs numbered 47 and 48 of the Recommended Order:

     These exceptions have merit.  Establishing a prima facie case of
discrimination under the McDonnell Douglas evidentiary framework does not
require a showing that Petitioner was discharged from her position "by reason of
her handicap".  This is an incorrect statement of law and it is rejected.

     In DeLong v. Department of Transportation, 15 F.A.L.R. 240,243 (FCHR 1991),
the DOAH hearing officer makes the same incorrect statement of law.  The
Commission adopted the Recommended Order in DeLong but the holding adopted by
the Commission was that no discrimination occurred because DeLong did not
qualify as an individual with a handicap.  The incorrect statement of law supra
amounts to no more than incorrect dicta in the DeLong decision.

     In Lee v. Russell County Board of Education, 684 F.2d 769,773 (11th Cir.
1982), the court explains the elements of a prima facie case in the context of
discharge from employment:  (i) plaintiff must be a member of a protected class;
(ii) plaintiff must be qualified for the position held; (iii) plaintiff must
have been discharged; (iv) plaintiff must have been replaced by a person outside
the protected class [or a person outside the protected class with equal or
lesser qualification was not discharged].

          V. Findings of Facts

     The DOAH hearing officer's findings are supported by competent substantial
evidence.  We adopt the hearing officer's findings of fact.

          VI.  Conclusions of Law

     The hearing officer errors in stating that the elements of a prima facie
case include a showing that Petitioner was discharged "because of her handicap".
The correction is set forth in our Rulings on the Exceptions.  The error is
harmless because the hearing officer assumes arguendo and credits Petitioner
with establishing a prima facie case.  The hearing officer then concludes that
Respondent's articulated reason for discharging Petitioner is legitimate and
nondiscriminatory.  The finding that no unlawful discrimination occurred is
correct.

     We accept the hearing officer's overall analysis of the legal issues and
conclusions based upon the factual findings.  We incorporate the above
correction regarding the elements of a prima facie case of discrimination under
the McDonnell Douglas evidentiary framework and we adopt the hearing officer's
conclusions.

          VII.  Dismissal

     The Petition for Relief From an Unlawful Employment Practice and the
Complaint of Discrimination are DISMISSED with prejudice.

     Each party is advised of his right to petition the Florida District Court
of Appeal for judicial review of this Final Agency Order.  Such Notice of Appeal



must be filed within 30 days of the date that this order is filed with the clerk
of the Commission.  Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, and Fla.R.App.P.
9.110(b).

     FOR THE FLORIDA COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS:

                       BY_______________________________
                         Commissioner Geraldine Thompson,
                           Panel Chairperson;
                         Commissioner Judith Kavanaugh; and
                         Commissioner James Mallue.

     FILED this 10th day of 1993, in Tallahassee, Florida.

                         _______________________
                         Clerk of the Commission

Copies furnished to:

Snowden S. Mowry, Esquire
Kanetsky, Moor & DeBoer, P.A.
Post Office Box 1767
Venice, Florida  34284-1767

David J. Stefany, Esquire
Hogg, Allen, Norton & Blue, P.A.
324 South Hyde Park Avenue, Suite 350
Tampa, Florida  33606

William R. Cave, DOAH Hearing Officer

Harden King, Legal Advisor
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                           STATE OF FLORIDA
                 DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

MICHAEL D. ENGLEKA,              )
                                 )
     Petitioner,                 )
                                 )
vs.                              )   CASE NO. 92-6338
                                 )
SUN COAST HOSPITAL, INC.,        )
                                 )
     Respondent.                 )
_________________________________)

                          RECOMMENDED ORDER

     Pursuant to notice, the above-styled matter was heard before the Division
of Administrative Hearings by its duly designated Hearing Officer, Daniel M.
Kilbride, on January 27, 1993, in Clearwater, Florida.  The following
appearances were entered:

                            APPEARANCES

     For Petitioner:  Michael David Engleka, Pro se
                      2826 Oak Lawn Avenue Apartment B
                      Largo, Florida  34641

     For Respondent:  Robin E. Greiwe, Esquire
                      Thompson, Sizemore & Gonzalez, P.A.
                      109 Brush North Suite 200
                      Tampa, Florida  34641

                      STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

     Whether Petitioner was the subject of an Unlawful Employment Practice by
being discharged from his employment due to his handicap, obesity with resulting
sleep apnea, in violation of the Florida Human Rights Act, Section 760.10,
Florida Statutes.

                        PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

     Petitioner filed a Petition for Relief from an unlawful employment practice
with the Florida Commission on Human Relations on October 3, 1992, charging
Respondent with a violation of Section 760.10, Florida Statutes.  After proper
service of process on the corporation, it denied the allegations.  The matter
was referred to the Division of Administrative Hearings for a Formal Hearing and
the submission of a recommended order to the Commission, on October 26, 1993.
Upon proper notice, a formal hearing was conducted in Clearwater, Florida, on
January 27, 1993.

     At the hearing, Petitioner testified in his own behalf and called his wife
as a witness, and offered ten (10) exhibits into evidence.  Respondent called
four (4) witnesses and offered twelve (12) exhibits in evidence.



     Upon conclusion of the hearing, the parties waived the ten-day rule and
were provided the opportunity to submit proposed findings of fact, conclusions
of law and legal argument within fourteen days of the filing of the transcript.
The transcript was filed on February 18, 1993.  Petitioner has not filed
proposed findings as of the date of this order.  Respondent filed its proposed
findings on March 2, 1993.  The Respondent's proposed findings of fact
conclusions of law and argument have been given careful consideration, and my
specific rulings on the proposed findings of fact are addressed in the Appendix
attached hereto.

     Based upon all of the evidence, the following findings of fact are
determined.

                          FINDINGS OF FACT

     1.  Petitioner was hired as a radiology escort in March, 1981, at Sun Coast
Hospital.  At that time Petitioner weighed approximately 325 - 335 pounds.

     2.  The essential functions of Petitioner's job require that he transport
patients by stretcher and wheelchair to and from the radiology department, and
lift and maneuver up to 300 pounds without assistance.  Other primary duties
include assisting in the radiographic rooms as needed, removing soiled linen to
a designated area, monitoring oxygen tanks, cleaning radiographic rooms and
performing dark room duties as needed.

     3.  In 1985, Petitioner received an average work performance evaluation.

     4.  In 1986, Petitioner did not meet standards in four out of nine areas.
Petitioner needed to improve his work habits and relationships with his
coworkers.

     5.  Petitioner frequently complained when requested he perform special
tasks.

     6.  Petitioner received two counsel sheets in 1986.  Counsel sheets are the
last stage of the progressive discipline procedure.  One counsel sheet arose
from Petitioner refusing to perform one of his job duties.  The other sheet
specified that Petitioner was not performing his share of the work.  Petitioner
complained about his work, slept on the job, and insisted on taking lunch
breaks, even if there was a patient that needed assistance.

     7.  Petitioner's performance improved in 1987.  Nevertheless, Petitioner's
self motivation was still below standard.

     8.  In 1988, Petitioner experienced performance problems once again.
Petitioner's 1988 annual evaluation specified that Petitioner needed to increase
his productivity and decrease his absenteeism.  In addition, Petitioner needed
to be more self-motivating.

     9.  In September, 1988, Petitioner received a written warning for falling
asleep in the hospital's front lobby.  Petitioner was warned not to sleep on
hospital time or work premises.  When Petitioner returned with a patient, he was
short of breath and sweating.

     10.  In November, 1988, Petitioner received a written counsel sheet again
for his poor job performance.  Petitioner was slow, did not do his share of the
work, and complained in front of patients.  Again, when Petitioner returned with



a patient, he was short of breath and sweating.  Petitioner insisted on sitting
down and resting before he transported another patient.  Other employees
complained to his supervisor that they could not perform their job when Mr.
Engleka was not getting patients to them.

     11.  In 1988, Petitioner did not indicate that he needed reasonable
accommodation.

     12.  Petitioner's position as an escort was a one person job.  Petitioner
could not rest in between patients because other employees could not get their
work done.  Delay resulted in radiological tests not being done in a timely
fashion which resulted in delayed patient care.

     13.  At the request of management, Petitioner was evaluated to determine if
he was physically able to perform the essential requirements of his position.

     14.  Dr. Rea, Respondent's personal physician, determined that continued
employment of Petitioner would pose a reasonable probability of substantial harm
to Petitioner.

     15.  Petitioner's labile hypertension, evidence of heart disease, obesity,
low blood oxygen levels, and the physical requirements of his job placed
Petitioner at substantial risk of having a heart attack and/or stroke.
Petitioner's prognosis as it stood was determined to be very guarded to poor.

     16.  There was no way to decrease the substantial risk of potential heart
attack or stroke, but for Petitioner to go on medical leave and lose weight.  No
reasonable accommodations could be made to enable Petitioner to perform his
essential job functions and eliminate or reduce the significant risk of heart
attack or stroke to Petitioner.

     17.  It was decided to recommend that Petitioner go on medical leave and
participate in a weight loss program to improve his physical well being which
could result in improvement of his work performance.

     18.  Petitioner was advised that the Hospital was placing Petitioner on a
medical leave of absence requiring Petitioner to enter the Optifast Weight Loss
Program, and get treatment for sleep apnea.  Respondent agreed to and did pay
for eighty percent (80 percent) of the weight loss program.

     19.  Petitioner's last day of work was February 14, 1989.  When Petitioner
was initially told about the requirement for weight loss, he thought it was a
good idea.

     20.  The next Optifast program started in March, 1989.

     21.  Petitioner was paid all outstanding vacation, holidays, and sick leave
until the Hospital outlined the specifics of placing Petitioner on medical
leave.

     22.  On or about March 24, 1989, Petitioner signed the leave agreement
which specified Petitioner would be terminated if he did not comply with the
weight loss program.  Additionally, the Hospital agreed to assist Petitioner in
receiving some income.  The document specified that Petitioner understood that
he would be replaced in his job.



     23.  The Optifast program lasted at least twenty-six (26) weeks.
Petitioner was expected to be on a leave of absence for at least the twenty-six
(26) weeks time period, and return to his position once he completed the
Optifast program.

     24.  Petitioner applied for unemployment compensation in February, 1989,
but was denied unemployment when Petitioner told the Unemployment Commission
that he was on a medical leave of absence.

     25.  Petitioner started the Optifast program on March 14, 1989.  At that
time Petitioner weighed four hundred fifty-three (453) pounds.

     26.  Petitioner had problems with weight loss program compliance in week 6
(April 18, 1989); week 12 (May 30, 1989); and Week 15 (June 20, 1989) when
Petitioner gained more than five (5) pounds.

     27.  Petitioner stopped attending the Optifast program after week 16, (June
27, 1989), of the 26 week program, and did not see the doctor after that date.

     28.  A very important phase of a fasting program is the behavior
modification phase where eating habits are actually changed so the patient does
not regain the weight he lost.

     29.  Petitioner quit the Optifast program before reaching maintenance.
Petitioner was not released, nor did he graduate from the Optifast program.

     30.  Petitioner did not comply with the Optifast Weight Loss Program,
because he stopped the program after 16 weeks.  Therefore, Petitioner did not
comply with the agreement between himself and Sun Coast Hospital.

     31.  Petitioner understood that he would be terminated by the Hospital if
he did not complete the Optifast program.

     32.  Petitioner was denied Social Security disability benefits in July 17,
1989.

     33.  At that time, Petitioner told Ken Deibel, former Director of Human
Resources for Suncoast Hospital, that he was in desperate need of some type of
income.  Deibel told Petitioner the Hospital would change Petitioner's status to
layoff so he could receive unemployment.  Petitioner immediately received two
(2) weeks severance pay in keeping with layoff status.

     34.  Shortly thereafter, Dr. Rea wrote an undated note stating that
Petitioner could return to a working status, in order for Petitioner to qualify
for unemployment.  Dr. Rea wrote this note after Petitioner complained that he
would not be able to continue the weight loss program unless he had a source of
income.  Dr. Rea did not release Petitioner to return to his position of
radiology escort.

     35.  The note was not addressed to or received by the Hospital.  The note
did not qualify Mr. Engleka to return to work as an escort at Sun Coast
Hospital.

     36.  Petitioner did not receive unemployment compensation following the
change of his status from medical leave of absence to layoff.

     37.  Petitioner did not restart the Optifast program.



     38.  Petitioner never brought a release from the Optifast program or told
the Hospital that he was ready to return to work.
39. On January 14, 1990, Dr. Rea wrote another letter stating Petitioner could
return to a "working status."

     40.  In January, 1990, when Sun Coast Hospital received the release for
Petitioner to return to a "working status," Petitioner was not otherwise
qualified for the escort position because he had not lost weight, and still
represented a substantial risk to himself.

     41.  At that time Petitioner had regained almost all the weight that he
lost while on the Optifast program, weighing 443 pounds.

     42.  In January, 1992, Petitioner was diagnosed as having congestive heart
failure.

                         CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

     43.  The Division of Administrative Hearings has jurisdiction over the
subject matter of this proceeding and the parties thereto, pursuant to Section
120.57(1), Florida Statutes.

     44.  The Petitioner contends that he was unlawfully discharged by the
Hospital when it discriminated against him due to his handicap, obesity, with
secondary sleep apnea.  The Petitioner relies on the Florida Human Rights Act of
1977, Section 760.10 et seq., Florida Statututes (1987).  The Human Rights Act
prohibits specified unlawful employment practices and provides remedies for such
violations.  The statute provides in pertinent part:

          760.01, Purposes, Construction, Title -
          (2)  The general purposes of Section 760.01
          - 760.10 are to secure for all individuals in
          the State freedom from discrimination because
          of race, color, religion, sex, national
          origin, age, handicap, or marital status, and
          thereby to protect their interest or personal
          dignity, to make available to the State their
          full protective capacity to secure the State
          against domestic strife and unrest, to provide
          the public safety, health, and general
          welfare, and to provide the interest, rights,
          and privileges of individuals within the
          State.
          (3)  Sections 760.01 - 760.10 shall be
          construed according to the fair import of its
          terms and shall be liberally construed to
          further the general purposes stated in this
          section and special purposes of the particular
          provision involved.
          760.10 Unlawful employment practices;
          remedies, construction -
          (1)  It is an unlawful employment practice for
          an employer:
          (a)  To discharge or to fail or refuse to hire
          any individual, or otherwise discriminate
          against any individual with respect to



          compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges
          of employment because of such individual's
          race, color, religion, sex, national origin,
          age, handicap, or marital status.
          (8)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of
          this section, it is not an unlawful employment
          practice under Subsection 760.01 - 760.10 for
          an employer, employment agency, labor
          organization, or joint labor management
          committee to:
          (a)  Take or fail to take any action on the
          basis of religion, sex, national origin, age,
          handicap, or marital status, and in those
          certain instances in which religion, sex,
          national origin, age, absence of a particular
          handicap, or marital status is a bona fide
          occupational qualification reasonably
          necessary for the performance of the
          particular employment to which such action or
          inaction is related.

     45.  The Florida Human Rights Act is patterned after Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 19064, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000e-2.  School Board of Leon County v.
Weaver, 556 So.2d 443 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990).  In Florida, there is a long-standing
rule of statutory construction which recognizes that if a state law is patterned
after a federal law on the same subject, the Florida law will be accorded the
same construction as in federal courts to the extent the construction is
harmonious with the spirit of the Florida legislation.  O'Loughlin v. Pinchback,
579 So.2d 788 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991).

     46.  The Petitioner in this case has sought to establish a disparate
treatment claim.  In Department of Corrections v. Chandler, 581 So.2d 1183 (Fla.
1st DCA 1991), the Court specified the burden of proof for the Petitioner and
the Respondent in such case of disparate treatment.  The Court said:

          . . .The United States Supreme Court set forth
          a procedure essential for establishing such
          claims in McDonnell-Douglas Corp. v. Greene,
          411 U.S. 792 Fla. S.Ct. 1817, 36 L.Ed.2d 668
          (1973), which was then revisited in detail in
          Texas Department of Community Affairs v.
          Burdine, 450 U.S. 248, 101 S. Ct. 1089, 67
          L.Ed.2d 207 (1981).

          Pursuant to the Burdine formula, the employee
          has the initial burden of establishing a prima
          facie case of intentional discrimination,
          which once established raises a presumption
          that the employer discriminated against the
          employee.  If the presumption arises the
          burden shifts to the employer to present
          sufficient evidence to raise a genuine issue
          of fact as to whether the employer
          discriminated against the employee.  The
          employer may do this by stating a legitimate,
          nondiscriminatory reason for the employment
          decision; a reason which is clear, reasonably



          specific and worthy of credence.  Because the
          employer has the burden of production, not one
          of persuasion which remains with the employee,
          it is required to persuade the trier of fact
          that its decisions was actually motivated by
          the reason given.  If the employer satisfies
          the burden, the employee must then persuade
          the fact finder that the proffered reason for
          the employment decision was pretext for the
          intentional discrimination.  The employee may
          satisfy this burden by showing directly that
          a discriminatory reason more likely than not
          motivated the decision, or indirectly by
          showing that the proffered reason for the
          employment decision is not worthy of belief.
          If such proof is adequately presented, the
          employee satisfies his other ultimate burden
          of demonstrating by a preponderance of
          evidence that he or she has been the victim
          of intentional discrimination.  [citations
          omitted.]

     47.  The Florida Commission on Human Relations has adopted federal
standards for allocating the burden of proof in handicap discrimination claims
as specified above.  Accordingly, to prove a prima facie case, Petitioner must
provide evidence that: (1)  he was handicapped; (2)  that he was able to perform
his assigned duties satisfactorily; and (3) that despite each satisfactory
performance, he was terminated.  Retton v. Department of Corrections, 9 FALR
2423, FCHR Order No. 86-045, December 18, 1986, citing McDonnell Douglas v.
Green, 411 U.S. 792, 93 S.Ct. 1817, 37 L.Ed.2d 668 (1973); Wolfe v. Department
of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 8 FALR 426 (FCHR Sept. 27, 1985).

     48.  The Petitioner has failed to establish that his condition, obesity,
with associated sleep apnea is physiological in origin and his condition is not
a handicap within the meaning of the Act.  Save for religion, the discrimination
on which discrimination laws focus are those that are either beyond the victim's
power to alter or that impose a burden on an employee on one of the prohibited
bases.  Voluntary obesity with associated secondary complications does not come
within the meaning of handicap as specified by the Act.

     49.  The Petitioner has failed to show that he performed or is able to
perform his assigned duties satisfactorily.  Additionally, under Retton, the
Petitioner failed to show that he could perform the duties as radiology escort
without a substantial risk of injury to himself.

     50.  There was no way to reasonably accommodate Petitioner in his position.
The escort position was a single person position.  Moreover, Petitioner would
not be needed if someone was hired to assist him.  Further, Petitioner could not
be permitted to rest between transports.  Petitioner's resting resulted in
putting other employees behind in their work and radiology tests not getting
done in a timely manner.  Therefore, trying to accommodate Petitioner in the
position would have been an undue hardship.

     51.  Respondent did reasonably accommodate Petitioner by affording him a
medical leave of absence and paying eighty percent (80 percent) of the expenses
of the weight loss program.  Nevertheless, Petitioner rejected the accommodation
when he quit the weight loss program after only 16 weeks of the 26 week program.



     52.  Respondent could have terminated Petitioner's employment once he quit
the weight loss program without successful completion because he was
"unqualified".  Specifically, Petitioner still represented a potential risk of
harm to himself.

     53.  Assuming, arguendo, Petitioner could prove a prima facie case,
Respondent met its burden of proving that Petitioner could not safely and
effectively perform his job.  See Kelly v. Bechtel Power Corp., 633 F. Supp. 927
(S.D. Fla. 1986).  Respondent took the steps necessary to reasonably determine
that Petitioner could not perform the essential functions of his job without
presenting a substantial risk of harm to himself.  Respondent thoroughly
familiarized itself with Petitioner's job requirements, and conducted a complete
investigation that Petitioner represented a substantial risk of harm to himself
in February 1989, and January 1990.

     54.  The Respondent's decision was made on an individualized case by case
analysis as required by law.  Mantolet v. Bolger, 767 F.2d 1416, 1422 - 23 (9th
Cir. 1985).  Moreover, Respondent relied on Petitioner's own personal physician
for direction in this case.

     55.  Respondent changed Petitioner's status from medical leave to layoff in
response to Petitioner's demands that he be given some source of income while
attempting to complete the program.

     56.  Petitioner was not capable of returning to work as a radiology escort
in July 1989, or January 1990, as Petitioner represented a substantial risk of
injury to himself at those times.

     57.  In conclusion, Petitioner was not discriminated against on the basis
of a handicap.

                           RECOMMENDATION

     Based on the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law, it is

     RECOMMENDED THAT:

     That a Final Order be issued which DENIES Petitioner's Charge of
Discrimination.

     DONE AND ENTERED this 26th day of May, 1993, in Tallahassee, Leon County,
Florida.

                              ___________________________________
                              DANIEL M. KILBRIDE
                              Hearing Officer
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              The DeSoto Building
                              1230 Apalachee Parkway
                              Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1550
                              (904) 488-9675

                              Filed with the Clerk of the
                              Division of Administrative Hearings
                              this 26th day of May, 1993.



                             APPENDIX

     The following constitutes my specific rulings, in accordance with section
120.59, Florida Statutes, on findings of fact submitted by the parties.

     Proposed Findings of Fact Submitted by Petitioner:

     Petitioner did not submit proposed findings of fact

     Proposed Findings of Fact Submitted by Respondent:

     Accepted in substance:  paragraphs - 1, 2, 4-11, 18-20, 21(in part), 22-42,
45-49, 50 in part
     Rejected as irrelevant or subsumed:  paragraphs - 3, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16,
17, 21(in part), 43, 44
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                NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUBMIT EXCEPTIONS

All parties have the right to submit written exceptions to the Recommended
Order.  All agencies allow each party at least 10 days in which to submit
written exceptions.  Some agencies allow a larger period within which to submit
written exceptions.  You should consult with the agency that will issue the
Final Order in this case concerning their rules on the deadline for filing
exceptions to this Recommended Order.  Any exceptions to this Recommended Order
should be filed with the agency that will issue the Final Order in this case.



                          STATE OF FLORIDA
                DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

MICHAEL D. ENGLEKA,         )
                            )
          Petitioner,       )
                            )
vs.                         )     CASE NO. 92-6338
                            )
SUN COAST HOSPITAL, INC.,   )
                            )
          Respondent.       )
____________________________)

                           CORRECTION TO
                         RECOMMENDED ORDER

     Pursuant to notice, an administrative hearing was held before Daniel M.
Kilbride, Hearing Officer with the Division of Administrative Hearings, on
January 27, 1993, in Clearwater, Florida.  The following appearances were
entered:

                            APPEARANCES

     For Petitioner:  Michael David Engleka, Pro se
                      2826 Oak Lawn Avenue, Apartment B
                      Largo, Florida  34641

     For Respondent:  Robin E. Greiwe, Esquire
                      Thompson, Sizemore & Gonzalez, P.A.
                      109 Brush North, Suite 200
                      Tampa, Florida  34641

                       PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

     Petitioner filed a Petition for Relief from an unlawful employment practice
with the Florida Commission on Human Relations on October 3, 1992.  After
referral to the Division of Administrative Hearings and the holding of a formal
hearing, a Recommended Order was submitted to the Commission on May 26, 1993.
Subsequently, it has come to the attention of the Hearing Officer that a
scrivener's error appears in paragraph 36, page 8 of the Recommended Order.
Therefore, pursuant to the authority granted in Rule 60Q-2.032, Florida
Administrative Code, a Hearing Officer may enter a corrected order at any time
sua sponte to correct a clerical mistake or error.



     In view of the foregoing, it is

     ORDERED:

     That the Recommended Order, dated May 26, 1993, pertaining to the above-
styled cause is corrected as follows:

     Paragraph 36 of the Findings of Fact is corrected to read as follows:

          36.  Petitioner did receive unemployment
          compensation following the change of his
          status from medical leave of absence to
          layoff.

     All other provisions of the Recommended Order shall stand as written.

     DONE and ORDERED this 11th day of June, 1993, in Tallahassee, Leon County,
Florida.

                            ___________________________________
                            DANIEL M. KILBRIDE
                            Hearing Officer
                            Division of Administrative Hearings
                            The DeSoto Building
                            1230 Apalachee Parkway
                            Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1550
                            (904) 488-9675

                            Filed with the Clerk of the
                            Division of Administrative Hearings
                            this 11th day of June, 1993.



COPIES FURNISHED:

Robin E. Greiwe, Esquire
Thompson, Sizemore & Gonzalez, P.A.
109 Brush North
Suite 200
Tampa, Florida  33602

Mr. Michael David Engleka
2826 Oak Lawn Avenue
Apartment B
Largo, Florida  34641

Sharon Moultry, Clerk
Commission on Human Relations
325 John Knox Road
Building F
Suite 240
Tallahassee, Florida  32303-4149

Dana Baird, Esquire
Commission on Human Relations
325 John Knox Road
Building F
Suite 240
Tallahassee, Florida  32303-4149

=================================================================
                         AGENCY FINAL ORDER
=================================================================

                          STATE OF FLORIDA
                   COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS

MICHAEL D. ENGLEKA,              )
                                 )
     Petitioner,                 )
                                 )     EEOC Case No.  n/a
v.                               )     FCHR Case No.  89-8687
                                 )     DOAH Case No.  92-6338
SUN COAST HOSPITAL, INC.,        )     FCHR Order No. 94-007
                                 )
     Respondent.                 )
_________________________________)



                FINAL ORDER DISMISSING PETITION FOR
                      RELIEF FROM AN UNLAWFUL
                        EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE

                    I.  Panel of Commissioners

     The following three Commissioners participated in the disposition of this
matter:

                    Commissioner James Mallue,
                      Panel Chairperson;
                    Commissioner Judith Kavanaugh; and
                    Commissioner Sandra Garcia.

                    II.  Appearances

     Petitioner Michael D. Engleka did not appear at the deliberations.

     For Respondent Sun Coast Hospital, Inc.:

                    Robin E. Greiwe, Esquire
                    Thompson, Sizemore & Gonzalez, P.A.
                    Post Office Box 639
                    Tampa, Florida  33601

                    III.  Preliminary Matters

     Michael D.  Engleka, Petitioner herein, filed a complaint of discrimination
with this Commission pursuant to the Human Rights Act of 1977, as amended,
Sections 760.01-760.10, Florida Statutes (1991), alleging that Sun Coast
Hospital, Inc., Respondent herein, unlawfully discriminated against him on the
basis of handicap.

     In accordance with the Commission's rules, the allegations of
discrimination were investigated and an Investigatory Report was submitted to
the Executive Director who issued his determination finding reasonable cause to
believe that an unlawful employment practice occurred.  Formal efforts to
conciliate this matter were unsuccessful.

     Petitioner filed a Petition for Relief from an Unlawful Employment Practice
and the case was transferred to the Division of Administrative Hearings (DOAH)
for the conduct of a formal proceeding.

     An administrative hearing was held in Clearwater, Florida, before DOAH
hearing officer Daniel M. Kilbride, who issued a Recommended Order of dismissal.

     Pursuant to notice, public deliberations were held in Tampa, Florida,
before the aforementioned panel of Commissioners, at which deliberations the
panel determined the action to be taken upon the Petition for Relief.

                    IV.  Findings of Facts

     The DOAH hearing officer's findings of fact are supported by competent
substantial evidence.  We adopt the hearing officer's finding of fact.



                    V.  Conclusions of Law

     The application of law is a correct disposition of this case.  We adopt the
overall legal conclusion holding that Respondent did not commit an unlawful
employment practice.  We do not adopt that portion of the legal conclusions
holding that Petitioner Engleka failed to establish that he is an individual
with a handicap.

     The impairments resulting from Petitioner's obesity, namely the sleep apnea
and the labile hypertension, means that Mr. Engleka does not enjoy, in some
measure, full and normal use of his sensory, mental, or physical faculties.
Accordingly, he is an individual with a handicap within the meaning of Section
760.10, Florida Statutes (1991).  Accord Stewart v. Wackenhut Corporation, 10
F.A.L.R. 4624 (FCHR 1988), and Fenesy v. G.T.E. Data Services, Inc., 3 F.A.L.R.
1764A (FCHR 1981).  In accordance with the Stewart case, even without proof that
his obesity is physiological in origin, Petitioner meets the legal standards to
be an individual with a handicap.  Accord Cook v. State of Rhode Island, 10 F.3d
17, 2 AD Cases 1476 (1st Cir. 1993).  We note that the hearing officer addressed
the merits of this case and that the correct disposition was attained.
Therefore, no reversible error occurred.

     With the above noted analysis incorporated, we adopt the hearing officer's
conclusions of law.

                    VI.  Dismissal

     The Petition for Relief From an Unlawful Employment Practice and the
Complaint of Discrimination are DISMISSED with prejudice.

     Each party is advised of his right to petition the Florida District Court
of Appeal for judicial review of this Final Agency Order.  Such Notice of Appeal
must be filed within 30 days of the date that this order is filed with the clerk
of the Commission.  Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, and Fla.R.App.P. 9.110(b).

     FOR THE FLORIDA COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS:

                             BY:_____________________________
                             Commissioner James Mallue,
                               Panel Chairperson;
                             Commissioner Judith Kavanaugh; and
                             Commissioner Sandra Garcia.

     FILED this 21st day of March 1994, in Tallahassee, Florida.

                             _____________________________
                             Sharon Moultry
                             Clerk of the Commission



Copies furnished to:

Michael D. Engleka, pro se
2826 Oak Lawn Avenue
Apartment #B
Largo, Florida  34641

Robin E. Greiwe, Esquire
Thompson, Sizemore & Gonzalez, P.A.
Post Office Box 639
Tampa, Florida  33601

Daniel M. Kilbride, DOAH Hearing Officer

Harden King, Legal Advisor
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